
MAYOR  CITY MANAGER 

Jason Buelterman Dr. Shawn Gillen 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Barry Brown, Mayor Pro Tem Jan LeViner 

John Branigin  

Wanda Doyle CITY ATTORNEY 
Julie Livingston Edward M. Hughes 

Monty Parks 
Shirley Sessions  

 CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

April 25, 2019 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda 6:30PM 

Executive Session 

Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation 
     Pledge of Allegiance 

1. Tybee Island Youth Council 

Introduction of Youth Ambassadors 

Project and Vote 

  

Recognitions and Proclamations 

2. Resolution - Georgia Cities Week 

3. Proclamation, Volunteer Month 

Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

4. Minutes, April 11, 2019 

5. Minutes, Special Meeting, April 17, 2019 

Reports of Staff, Boards, Standing Committees and/or Invited Guest.  Limit reports to 10 
minutes. 

6. Sam LeCates, Tybee Island Youth Council, Ambassadors 

Page 1



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

7. Historic Preservation Commission Update:  Martha (Marty) Harrell  
 

Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum allowable times of 5 
minutes. 

8. Carolyn Jurick, Tybee Island Maritime Academy 

9. Jack Boylston - Beach Bum Parade 

10. Jenny Rutherford, Beach Equipment Rental 

Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 

Consideration of Local Requests & Applications – Funding, Special Events, Alcohol License 

11. Agenda Request: Alcohol License: Liquor/Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales-Tybee RE Operating 
Company LLC dba Hotel Tybee 

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 

12. Cintas Uniform Contract 

13. Agreement, 4-H Facility, Tybee Island Youth Council 

14. Brent Watts, Additional structure at 15 Meddin 

15. Georgia Power Company Distributed Generation Agreement 

16. Falcon Contract, Fireworks 

17. The Agreement (2019 Accredited Member Sublicense Form_GA_from NMSC) is attached 
for the Mayor to sign.  The signed agreement should be returned to Jessica Reynolds at 
DCA-ODD.  Once all parties have signed, an executed copy will be sent to all. 

18. Approval to hire a seasonal employee - Finance Department for May through August 
2019.  Line Item 100-1512-51.1100 

19. Approve moving forward with contract with Momentum Telecom, new telephone system, 
Line Item 100-1535-52-1300 

20. Second Amendment to Non-Exclusive Intergovernmental Mineral License - Re-
nourishment Project 

Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

21. First Reading, 2019-09, Section 34-261 - Application, STVR 

22. Second Reading, 2019-03, Graffiti 

23. First Reading, 2019-04, Sec 22-33, Disorderly Household 

Page 2



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

24. Second Reading, 2019-06, Sec 6-5 and 6-6, Fingerprints 

25. Second Reading, 2019-07, Sec 6-88, Application Required and Sec 6-89, Issuance 

26. Second Reading, 2019-08, Sec 2-010, Terms and Definitions, Height of Building 

27. Second Reading, 2019-10, Sec 5-090, Variances 

Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 

28. Jason Buelterman - clarify definition of home-based business 

29. Jason Buelterman - Finance Committee Notes and Recommendations 

30. Jason Buelterman - Golf Cart Safety 

31. Barry Brown, Update, Infrastructure Committee 

32. Wanda Doyle - Update, Public Safety Committee 

33. Shawn Gillen - 3-Way Stops for Approval 

Seeking council approval for a 3-Way Stop at North Campbell and Van Horn and a 3-
Way Stop at Meddin and Cedarwood 
 

Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  

Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 

Adjournment 

 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 

should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 
prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 

Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 
THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
 

 

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 
THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
 

 

Page 3

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 
  

Page 4



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Resolution - Georgia Cities Week 

  

Page 5



 

 
 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 

 

P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 

www.cityoftybee.org 

RESOLUTION 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island recognizing Georgia Cities Week, April 21 - 27, 2019 
and encouraging all citizens to support the celebration and corresponding activities; and  
 
WHEREAS, Georgia Cities Week is a very important time to recognize the important role 
played by city government in our lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, this week offers an important opportunity to spread the word to all the citizens 
of Georgia that they can shape and influence this branch of government which is closest 
to the people; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Georgia Municipal Association and its member cities have joined together 
to teach students and other citizens about municipal government through a variety of 
different projects and information; and 
 
WHEREAS, Georgia Cities Week offers an important opportunity to convey to all the 
citizens of Georgia that they can shape and influence government through their civic 
involvement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that I Jason Buelterman and the members of the 
Tybee Island City Council, declare April 21 – 27, 2019 as Georgia Cities Week and further 
encourages all citizens, City Government Officials and employees to do everything 
possible to ensure that this week is recognized and celebrated accordingly.  
 
 
 
         ______________________ 
         JASON BUELTERMAN 
         Mayor, City of Tybee Island  
                
 

Page 6



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. Proclamation, Volunteer Month 

  

Page 7



 

 
 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island wishes to recognize volunteers for their continued 
cooperation and to encourage the voluntary participation of others in their valuable 
services; and 
 
WHEREAS, our City government could not function without volunteers who serve on 
our boards, commissions, task forces and committees; and 
 
WHEREAS, every day, volunteers help shape the policies that keep our City heading in 
the right direction and their impact can be felt throughout the community; and 
 
WHEREAS,  there are volunteers in our community who give of their time and effort to 
help others through their church, community organizations, service clubs, schools, 
charitable organizations and other worthy endeavors; and 
 
WHEREAS, volunteers are motivated by the simple satisfaction of helping their fellow 
citizens and making their community a better place to live; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I Jason Buelterman and members of City Council of Tybee Island 
do hereby proclaim April as “Volunteer Appreciation Month” to honor the hard work and 
selfless dedication of all the volunteers who serve the City and community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of 
Tybee Island to be affixed this 25th day of April 2019. 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Jason Buelterman, Mayor 
       Tybee Island, GA 

Page 8



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

4. Minutes, April 11, 2019 

  

Page 9



City Council Minutes, April 11, 2019 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda 
Mayor Buelterman called the consent agenda to order at 6:30PM on April 11, 2019.  Those 
present were Julie Livingston, John Branigin, Wanda Doyle, Barry Brown, and Shirley Sessions.  
Also attending were Dr. Shawn Gillen, City Manager; Bubba Hughes, City Attorney; George 
Shaw, Director, Community Development; and Janet LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Julie Livingston made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss real estate, 
litigation and personnel.  John Branigin seconded.  Vote was unanimous, 5-0. 
 
Wanda Doyle made a motion to return to regular session.  Barry Brown seconded.  Vote was 
unanimous, 5-0 to approve. 
 
Mayor Buelterman listed the following items on the consent agenda: 

 City Council Minutes, March 28, 2019 
 Contract, Korkat, Jaycee Playground Shade System.  $75,663.84 and surface is 

$94,715.50. Budget Line Item:  322.6210.54.1100.  Discussion:  Approval authorizes 
Mayor Buelterman to sign the contract once it has been formalized to include receipt of 
the Performance Bond.  Mr. Hughes confirmed. 

 GA Power, Contract, License Plate Reader 
 Boundary Agreement, Moore and Solomon 

 
Mayor Buelterman called the regular meeting to order at 7:00PM.  All those present for the 
consent agenda were present. 
 
Opening Ceremonies 

 Call to Order 
 Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Wanda Doyle announced the activities for Georgia Cities Week, April 21 – 26, 2019 to include 
a Volunteer Reception, Beach Sweep and Employee Recognition Picnic.  On Thursday, April 25th 
the Tybee Island Youth Council will participate in the City Council Meeting to present their 
current and future activities. 

 
Recognitions and Proclamations 
Mayor Buelterman recognized Cathy Sakas for her years of service as Chair of the Beach 
Task Force.  Ms. Sakas thanked everyone for their support and the recognition. 
 
Major Joel Fobes introduced Korra Jaglinski who recently graduated from the Police 
Academy and is now a member of the Patrol Staff, Tybee Island Police Department. 
 
Ava Thomas, Tybee Island Youth Council, approached Mayor and Council to give an 
update on the Youth Council.  Ms. Thomas detailed their trip to Atlanta for Savannah/Chatham 
Day and their upcoming fund raising events.   
 
Jan Will approached Mayor and Council to give an update on Tybee’s Flower, the Zinnia. 
 
Mack Kitchens and Crista Rader approached Mayor and Council to discuss his agenda item, 
Naylor Avenue.  Mr. Kitchens stated this was before Mayor and Council previously and since has 

Page 10



had the utilities and services located and marked.  They propose to purchase a piece of 
property as outlined on the plat in Mayor and Council’s packet before them as it cannot be 
opened.  The easement would be left in place then come to terms regarding set-backs as a new 
structure is planned on the lot.  They are not looking to build into the easement only up to it.  
Ms. Rader would continue to maintain the easement.  Ms. Livingston confirmed the reason for 
purchasing the property is for the set-back as they cannot build without a variance.  Mr. 
Kitchens confirmed.  Ms. Livingston is in favor of moving forward with this request.   Mr. 
Hughes confirmed the process for moving forward.  Ms. Doyle asked if there is a negative 
impact regarding this request.  Mr. Hughes stated Mayor and Council are at the point in the 
process to determine if they want to move forward with the transaction.  Mayor pro tem Brown 
confirmed the dimensions of the set-backs.  Mr. Branigin stated he supports moving forward 
with the process as that is what before Mayor and Council currently.  Mayor Buelterman 
thanked Mr. Kitchens and Ms. Rader. 
 
Jenny Rutherford, Beach Equipment Rental.  Not present.  To be heard at a later 
date. 
 
Wanda Doyle made a motion to approve the consent agenda.   Julie Livingston seconded.  
Vote was unanimous, 5-0. 
 
Public Hearing 
Text Amendment:  Sec 5-090 Variance (b) Height – Text Additional/Change.  George 
Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw stated this is an item that was before Mayor 
and Council previously and includes a height definition to prevent elevators from opening above 
35’.  When this was heard previously Mr. Shaw did not realize height was defined in the 
variance procedures.  He continued, with this change both ordinances will match.  Julie 
Livingston made a motion to approve.  John Branigin seconded.  Voting in favor were Julie 
Livingston, John Branigin, Wanda Doyle and Shirley Sessions.  Voting against was Barry Brown.  
Motion to approve, 4-1. 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
Mack Kitchens, C. Rader, Naylor Avenue.  Wanda Doyle made a motion to approve 
moving to the next phase of the request.  Julie Livingston seconded. Discussion:  Mayor 
Buelterman stated the rational of this request is this will enable the petitioner to build into the 
set-back on one side.  Mayor pro tem Brown confirmed.   Mr. Branigin stated what is before 
Mayor and Council is only approving moving forward with the next phase of the request.  Mr. 
Hughes stated the next phase of the process is to reach out to the Department Heads for their 
recommendation if this request is in the best interest of the City to make the conveyance.  Then 
the petitioner needs to obtain an appraisal and finally to the Planning Commission.  Voting in 
favor were Julie Livingston, John Branigin, Wanda Doyle and Barry Brown.  Voting against was 
Shirley Sessions.  Motion to approve, 4-1. 
 
Brent Watts, Additional structure at 15 Meddin.  Mr. Hughes stated the Clerk has the 
plat showing the placement of the pool and asked that it be distributed.  He stated this is the 
same plat as previously presented, none of the lot lines have changed and the configuration of 
the lot have previously been approved. He continued, the only issue is the addition, of what is 
Lot “B” where the barracks have been restored, of a structure of a swimming pool.  The 
conditional zoning or Land Use Agreement provides any new structures in the new lots would 
require approval by Mayor and Council.  Mayor Buelterman stated it is not clear and the plat as 
presented to them has not been made public nor has Mayor and Council had sufficient time to 
review.  His preference would be to move this item to April 25, 2019 City Council 

Page 11



Meeting.  Josh Yellin approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Yellin made reference to the 
Conditional Agreement that was entered into for the rezoning of the property did stated that 
any new structure would come before Mayor and Council and it is his opinion that a pool is not 
a structure.  The petitioner does not need building permit, only a pool permit.    
 
Julie Livingston made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss real estate, 
litigation and personnel.  Wanda Doyle seconded.  Vote was unanimous, 5-0. 
 
Julie Livingston made a motion to return to regular session.  Wanda Doyle seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous, 5-0. 
 
Barry Brown made a motion to adjourn.  John Branigin seconded.  Vote was unanimous, 5-
0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:15PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Janet R. LeViner, CMC 
Clerk 
 

Page 12



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

5. Minutes, Special Meeting, April 17, 2019 

  

Page 13



City Council Minutes, Special Meeting, April 17, 2019 
 
Wanda Doyle called the Special Meeting to order on April 17, 2019 at 3:30PM.  Those present 
were Monty Park, Shirley Sessions and Julie Livingston.   
 
Approval of GMP2/Contract, Tybee Island Marine Science Center.  Ms. Doyle stated 
the contract has been previously approved and in order to be transparent the GMP2 is before 
Mayor and Council for approval.  Being there were no questions or comments, Monty Parks 
made a motion to accept the GMP2 and authorize the Mayor to sign.  Shirley Sessions 
seconded.  Motion to approval was unanimous, 4-0. 
 
Mayor Buelterman and Barry Brown joined the meeting in progress and John Branigin joined 
telephonically as he was traveling.  
 
Motion to move to the Budget Workshop portion was made by Julie Livingston. Seconded by 
Monty Parks.  Vote was unanimous. 

Page 14



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

11. Agenda Request: Alcohol License: Liquor/Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales-Tybee RE Operating 
Company LLC dba Hotel Tybee 

  

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

12. Cintas Uniform Contract 

  

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

13. Agreement, 4-H Facility, Tybee Island Youth Council 

  

Page 23



 

 
 

Burton 4-H Center - Program Contract 
Burton 4-H Center                                                                  9 Lewis Avenue                                                                                                      Tybee Island, GA 31328 
 
We look forward to your group coming to Burton 4-H Center and participating in the Environmental Education Program. We hope that your visit will be 
an enjoyable and rewarding learning experience. 
Please sign and return this contract and the required non-refundable deposit of $50.00 as soon as possible to secure your accommodations (deposit 
will be credited to the balance due upon arrival).  Reservations are not confirmed until the signed contract and deposit have been received.  
SUPERVISION: 
All groups will be expected to provide supervision of youth participants at all times throughout the duration of the field study to include, but not limited 
to: classes, meals, recreational, and lodging times. Visiting adults/teachers/chaperones will assume all responsibility for monitoring youth's behavior. 
Please notify Burton 4-H Center staff for assistance as necessary. 
GUARANTEED COUNTS: 
Burton 4-H Center requires guaranteed counts 7 days prior to trip.  There will be a $10/person charge for each space reserved but not showing. 
LODGING: 
Assignments will be based on the guaranteed number. Burton 4-H Center reserves the right to reduce the total number of cabins, dorm rooms, and/or 
buildings to be used by your group when actual attendance is lower than the original estimated attendance. If necessary, Burton 4-H Center also 
reserves the right to change the designated lodging and/or buildings being used by your group to accommodate other groups. 
CANCELLATION POLICY: 
As it is difficult to reschedule space without adequate advance notice, we must charge an assessment for cancellations and reductions in attendance by 
your school. The assessment will be charged based upon your written notification to the Burton 4-H Center office according to the following schedule: 
Written Notice Received Within:    Assessment Charge: 
120 days prior to scheduled trip    No charge 
60-120 days prior to scheduled trip   $10.00 per person charge for each reserved space 
Less than 60 days prior to scheduled trip   $25.00 per person charge for each reserved space 
PAYMENT 
All groups will be expected to pay in full upon departure unless prior arrangements have been made. If special advance arrangements have been made, 
payment is due within 30 days from the billing date. All material balances greater than 180 days outstanding will be turned over to a collection agency. 
All groups agree to pay any attorney’s fees and /or collection costs that might be incurred by the University of Georgia in the collection of unpaid 
balances. 

 
Tybee Island Youth Council Conference Number:  1910006 
Jan LeViner Phone Number: (912) 472-5080   
PO Box 2749 Extension:    
Tybee Island, GA  31328 Fax Number:  E-mail: jleviner@cityoftybee.org 
Beginning: Sat 10/19/2019 Ending: Sun 10/20/2019 First Meal: n/a Last Meal:  n/a 
Est. Attendance: 31 X Charge per Person: $23.23 = Estimated Total Charge: $720.00 
In signing this contract, the organization is responsible for the payment of all charges in conjunction with this meeting or conference and 
agrees to the terms stated on the attached letter.  Payment shall be made in the following manner: 
 Check ( )  Cash ( )  Bill ( ) 
    
    
Signature     Name of Group 

  

Date Signed 
Contract Printed    Wednesday, March 27, 2019 

 

Page 24



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

14. Brent Watts, Additional structure at 15 Meddin 

  

Page 25



A
L

L
E

Y

MAPLEWOOD  CIRCLE 50' R/W
(UNOPENED)

MEDDIN DRIVE 50' R/W

6'-0"

1
5
'
-
0
"

8
'
-
0
"

17'-1"

1

0

'
-

0

"

S

I
D

E

Y

A

R

D

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

36'-0"

4
0
'

15'10' 10'-7"

5
'

9

'

1

8

'

24'

14.0
15.0

11.3 PC

11.3 PC

11.3 PC

11.3 PC

11.2 TP

11.0 TP

11.2 TP

11.1 TP

11.2 TP
11.2  TP

10.3 TP

9.5 TP

2%

9.8 TP
9.8 TP

10.3 TP

10.3 TP

11.3 FG

11.1 TP

10.6 RIM

9.5 POP UP

2.5%

4%

10.8 TP

1.
8%

1.9%

10.5 RIM

10.5 RIM

10.9 TP

11.3 FG

11.2 FG

11.1 TP

11.2 TP

8.2 TP

10.2 TP

SWALE CENTERLINE

3'

4" NDS DRAIN PIPE

8.5 POP UP

9.4 TP

No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L1.1

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Construction Layout
&

Drainage Plan

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

0

SCALE: 

feet16 32 48

1" = 16'

N  O  R  T  H

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL/DESCRIPTION QTY DETAIL Material Finish Electrical Lamp Watts Color Temp Lens Ballast Optics/Glare Mounting Options

FX Luminaire CA - LED 11 Copper (CU) Copper 10 to 15 Volts 1LED 2W N/A (F) Frosted N/A N/A Long Slot Spike Riser 18"
FX Luminaire FB - LED 4 Aluminum Alloy (BZ) Bronze Metallic 10 to 15 Volts 1LED 2W 2900K (F) Frosted N/A Diffuser 18Â° (SSS) Super Slot Spike N/A

LIGHTING_SCHEDULE

      = DIRECTION OF SURFACE DRAINAGE FLOW ROUTE BS    = BOTTOM OF STEPS

FS    = FINISHED SURFACE

INV   = INVERT ELEVATION

      = EXISTING CONTOUR

      = PROPOSED CONTOUR

      = SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

      = SANITARY SEWER CLEAN-OUT

      = STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

      = STORM DRAIN, SIZE, TYPE, SLOPE.

      = CATCH BASIN WITH RIM AND PIPE INVERT 

      = SPOT ELEVATION GRADE POINT (EXISTING)

      = SPOT ELEVATION (PROPOSED) DI    = DRAIN INLET

TB    = TOP OF BERM
TC    = TOP OF CURB
TF    = TOP OF FOOTING
TG    = TOP OF GRATE
TP    = TOP OF PAVING
TS    = TOP OF STEPS
TW    = TOP OF WALL 

FG    = FINISHED GRADE
FF    = FINISH FLOOR

FL    = FLOW LINE
GB    = GRADE BREAK

MH    = MANHOLE

RIM   = RIM ELEVATION

HP    = HIGH POINT
GP    = GRADE POINT

CB    = CATCH BASIN
CO    = CLEAN OUT

      = 4" NDS EZ FLO DRAIN PIPE (DETAIL 1/3.3)

        ELEVATIONS.

GRADING LEGEND

March 6, 2019

SHEET DESCRIPTION

L1.1 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT & DRAINAGE PLAN
L2.1 PLANTING PLAN
L3.1 SITE DETAILS
L3.2 SITE DETAILS 2
L3.3 SITE DETAILS 3
L4.1 PLANT SCHEDULE & DETAILS

SHEET INDEX

PC    = POOL COPING

      = 4" NDS DRAIN PIPE

March 27, 2019

Page 26



A
L

L
E

Y

MAPLEWOOD  CIRCLE 50' R/W
(UNOPENED)

MEDDIN DRIVE 50' R/W

(3)VIBO

(12)PODO

(3)VIBO

(1)CAMS

(10)AZAF
(1)QUEV

(3)TRAJ
(54)MUHC (14)PODO

(1)LIGJ
(9)ASPE (10)VIBS

(2)RHAH
(44)TRAA

(10)DIAT

(43)DRYE

(25)MUHC

(3)HYDD
(66)TRAA

(4)PODP
(24)DIAT (2)RHAH

(10)VIBS

(44)TRAA

(11)DIAT
(4)QUEV

(35)DRYE

(2)QUEV

(5)QUEV

(4)QUEV

(1)QUEV

(14)ASPE
(1)LIGJ
(1)QUEV

(58)DRYE
(11)PODP

(5) ILLP
(8)PODO

(40)TRAA

(13)TRAJ

(5)AZAF
(1)QUEV

(2)QUEV
(60)LIRS

(54)LIRS

No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L2.1

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Planting Plan

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

0

SCALE: 

feet16 32 48

1" = 16'

N  O  R  T  H

March 6, 2019

March 27, 2019

Page 27



No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L3.1

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Site Details

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT NOTES:

1.  ANY DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS FOUND IN THE VARIOUS PARTS OF THE         CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL
BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR THE OWNER BEFORE STARTING WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL FIELD DIMENSIONS, DISTANCES AND CONDITIONS  PRIOR TO STARTING WORK.
DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE  REPORTED TO OWNER AND L.A.

3. ALL MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS

4. DETAILS SHOWN ARE TYPICAL UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  SIMILAR DETAILS  APPLY IN SIMILAR CONDITIONS.

5. ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY  TO THE INTERNATIONAL BLDG. CODE, LATEST EDITION,   AS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBSERVE AND COMPLY WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE,  AND LOCAL LAWS REQUIRED FOR THE
PROTECTION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

7. SCOPE OF WORK: THE GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ALL LABOR, EQUIPMENT, AND
MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL EXTERNAL LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL, HARDSCAPE AND SOFTSCAPE
ELEMENTS AS  PER PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE SLEEVING FOR ELECTRICAL AND IRRIGATION    AND WILL HAVE TO VERIFY ALL
NECESSARY SLEEVING BEFORE STARTING WORK.

9. WALKS AND PARKING AREAS TO BE STAKED IN FIELD BY CONTRACTOR.  PLANTATION MIX SHALL BE SPREAD TO A
THICKNESS OF 2". (IF APPLICABLE)

10. BRICK & CONCRETE WALKS ARE TO MATCH EXISTING WALKS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. (IF APPLICABLE)

11. ALL STEEL EDGING TO BE 3/16" THICK UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. (IF APPLICABLE)

6
"

GRAVEL DRIVE W/ STEEL EDGE1 POP UP DRAIN EMITTER2 12" NDS CATCH BASIN3

4
"

8"

1
"

CONCRETE PAVER W/ MORTARED EDGE4

PERMEABLE PAVERS5

1" = 1'-0"

4
'
-
0

"

8'-0" 8'-0" 4'-0"

1
'
-
2

"

3 RAIL WOOD FENCE W/ WIRE

1
'
-
2

"

6

March 27, 2019

Page 28



40'

5'

3'

No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L3.2

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Site Details 2

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

1" = 1'-0"

3
'
-
6

"

6'-0"

6
"

1
0

"

3 RAIL FENCE1

6
'
-
5
"

6
'
-
0
"

2
'
-
6
"

6'-0" 6'-0"

6' WOOD FENCE2

March 6, 2019

POOL SECTION00

LIGHTING NOTES:

1.  ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS  AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

2.  HAND TRENCHING IS REQUIRED FOR ALL WIRING WITHIN DRIPLINES OF ALL TREES GREATER THAN 16" CALIPER OR
GREATER FOR MINIMAL  DAMAGE TO ROOTS AND ROOTZONE.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENGINEER THE ELECTRICAL SYSTEM BASED ON THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS, THE
LOCATION AND TYPE OF FIXTURE AS SHOWN ON THE PLAN. PROPERLY SIZED WIRING, TRANSFORMERS, ACCESSORIES, ETC.
SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS   NECESSARY TO PROVIDE A COMPLETE LIGHTING SYSTEM.

4. LOW VOLTAGE LIGHTING TO BE CONTROLLED BY A TIMER UNLESS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY L.A. OR OWNER.

5. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE AS-BUILT DRAWINGS UPON COMPLETION PRIOR  TO FINAL PAYMENT.

IRRIGATION NOTES:

1.  PROVIDE 100% COVERAGE OF PLANT BEDS, GRASS AREAS, AND NEWLY  PLANTED BUFFERS.

2.  HAND TRENCHING IS REQUIRED FOR ALL PIPE WITHIN DRIPLINES OF ALL TREES GREATER THAN 16" CALIPER OR
GREATER FOR MINIMAL  DAMAGE TO ROOTS AND ROOTZONE.

3. PROVIDE AUTOMATIC TIMER CONTROL (ELECTRIC) & RAIN SENSOR COORDINATE LOCATION W/ OWNER.

4. INCORPORATE ZONES THAT SEPARATE GRASS AREAS FROM PLANT BEDS.

5. AVOID IRRIGATION OF ROADS, PARKING AND WALKS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE AS-BUILT DRAWING LOCATING VALVES AND MAINLINE.   GOVERNING MUNICIPALITY AND
TO CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE CODES.

GRADING NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR IS TO INSURE THAT SITE DRAINAGE WILL BE MAINTAINED WITHIN THE PROPERTY BOUNDARIES AND NO DRAINAGE WILL
BE DIRECTED ONTO ADJACENT PROPERTIES.

2. CONSTRUCT SITE, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALKS TO ALLOW FOR DRAINAGE FLOW
CONSISTENT WITH COMMUNITY AND PROPOSED GRADING AND DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE PLAN. PLAN ASSUMES GRADING ACTIVITY IS
CONSISTENT WITH MASTER PLANNED COMMUNITY DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE AND TREATMENT.

3. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SITE UTILITY AND STORM WATER REQUIREMENTS AND ENSURE PROPOSED DRAINAGE COMPLIES WITH ANY
PERMIT CONDITIONS. ALL CONSTRUCTION BMP'S AND ANY APPLICABLE SCDHEC-OCRM PERMITTING IS ASSUMED TO BE HANDLED BY
THE OWNER DIRECTLY.

4. PLAN IS PREPARED USING SITE PLAN & BUILDING INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE ARCHITECT, AND TREE & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
PROVIDED BY THE SURVEYOR.

5. ALL PROPOSED DRAINAGE PIPE IS TO HAVE A POSITIVE OUTFLOW UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY L.A.

6. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES AND IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE THAT MAY
OCCUR TO EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL BRING ANY GRADING DISCREPANCIES TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR A DECISION
PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

8. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 1.5% SLOPE FOR A DISTANCE OF 5 FEET AWAY FROM ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED
STRUCTURES. ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TOWARD DRAINAGE SWALES AND CATCH BASINS IN ALL LOCATIONS TO THE SATISFACTION
OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

9. GRADING AROUND EXISTING TREES SHALL BE DONE BY HAND AND NO ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT
FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLATION OF DRAINAGE STRUCTURES OR SWALES.

March 27, 2019

Page 29



No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L3.3

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Site Details 3

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

March 6, 2019

ACCESS AILSE AND

PARKING STALLS TO

HAVE NO MORE THAN 2%

SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION

™

NDS, INC.
851 NORTH HARVARD AVE.
LINDSAY, CA 93247
TOLL FREE: 1-800-726-1994
PHONE: (559) 562-9888
FAX: (559) 562-4488
www.ndspro.com

REVISION DATE 3-5-2015

NOTES:
1.   MUST BE INSTALLED 10' AWAY FROM STRUCTUREOR FOUNDATION.
2.   FWAS24 KIT DOES NOT COME WITH FWPB24 BTM.
3.   REFERENCE FLO-WELL CALCULATOR ON NDSPRO.COM
4.   INSTALLATION TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
5.   DO NOT SCALE DRAWING.
6.   THIS DRAWING IS INTENDED FOR USE BY ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, CONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS AND DESIGN

PROFESSIONALS FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY.
7.   ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN WAS CURRENT AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT BUT MUST BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED

BY THE PRODUCT MANUFACTURER TO BE CONSIDERED ACCURATE.

FLO-WELL INSTALLATION DETAIL - LOAD CLASS "A" & "B" - GRAVEL INSTALLATION DETAIL

FLO-WELL DRY WELL SYSTEM

FWAS24C 24" DIA. FLOW WELL COVER.
4" SCH 40 COUPLING

4" NDS GRATES OR APPLICABLE
IN LINE LOW PROFILE ADAPTERS.

4" SCH 40 PIPE CUT TO LENGTH PER
DEPTH OF FLO-WELL

4" PVC INLET W/ 1% MIN. SLOPE.

FWFF67 POROUS FILTER
FABRIC WRAP.

1" DIA. PERCOLATION HOLE
KNOCK OUTS SCORE AND

KNOCK OUT ALL HOLES
BEFORE WRAPPING THE

FLOW WELL WITH
LANDSCAPE FABRIC.

3/4" TO 1 1/2" CLEAN GRAVEL
BACKFILL RECOMMENDED.

FWSPS3 (3) FLOW WELL SIDE PANELS.
FWBP24 24" DIA. FLOW WELL BOTTOM.

4" DIA. DRAINAGE CONNECTION
HOLES. UTILIZE HOLES AS NEEDED
FOR INLETS AND OUTLETS.

FINISHED GRADE

8"
 M

IN
.

3'-
2"

 M
IN

.

6"
 M

IN
.

1'-0" MIN.

™

NDS, INC.
851 NORTH HARVARD AVE.
LINDSAY, CA 93247
TOLL FREE: 1-800-726-1994
PHONE: (559) 562-9888
FAX: (559) 562-4488
www.ndspro.com

REVISION DATE 3-6-2015

NOTES:
1.   MUST BE INSTALLED 10' AWAY FROM STRUCTUREOR FOUNDATION.
2.   FWAS24 KIT DOES NOT COME WITH FWPB24 BTM.
3.   REFERENCE FLO-WELL CALCULATOR ON NDSPRO.COM
4.   INSTALLATION TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
5.   DO NOT SCALE DRAWING.
6.   THIS DRAWING IS INTENDED FOR USE BY ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, CONTRACTORS, CONSULTANTS AND DESIGN

PROFESSIONALS FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY.
7.   ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN WAS CURRENT AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT BUT MUST BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED

BY THE PRODUCT MANUFACTURER TO BE CONSIDERED ACCURATE.

FLO-WELL INSTALLATION DETAIL - LOAD CLASS "A" & "B" - GRAVEL INSTALLATION DETAIL,

                                                                                    -  MULTIPAL FLO-WELL - LATERAL CONNECTION

FLO-WELL DRY WELL SYSTEM

FWAS24C 24" DIA. FLOW
WELL COVER.

FWSPS3 (3) FLOW WELL
SIDE PANELS.
FWBP24 24" DIA. FLOW WELL
BOTTOM.
4" DIA. DRAINAGE CONNECTION
HOLES. UTILIZE HOLES AS NEEDED
FOR INLETS AND OUTLETS.

FWFF67 POROUS FILTER
FABRIC WRAP.

1" DIA. PERCOLATION HOLE
KNOCK OUTS. SCORE AND

KNOCK OUT ALL HOLES
BEFORE WRAPPING THE

FLOW WELL WITH
LANDSCAPE FABRIC.

3/4" TO 1 1/2" CLEAN GRAVEL
BACKFILL RECOMMENDED.

FINISHED GRADE

SECTION

FWSD69 4" SCH 40 PIPE SURFACE
DRAIN INLET WITH GRATE

4" PVC INLET W/ 1%  MIN. SLOPE.

3'-
2"

 M
IN

.
6"

 M
IN

.
8"

 M
IN

.

1'-0" MIN.

6
"

10"

10' 10'

NDS EZFLOW SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE SYSTEM1
2 3

FX LUMINAIRE


































NP UPLIGHT00





















R

CA PATH LIGHT LONG SLOT SPIKE

R

00

March 27, 2019

Page 30



No. 1250

D

N

I

H

C

T

R

P

S

T

O

G

E

E

A

I

GR

I

S

TE

R

E

D

L

G

PROFESSIONAL

A

R

C

A

E
A

E

C

.

M

I

C

H

A

E

L S

S

M

A

L

L

Project #:

L4.1

Date:

REVISIONS:

No.              

Drawing Number

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Plant Schedule
&

Details

MSS

February 7, 2019

MSS

M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
15

 M
ED

DI
N 

DR
IV

E
TY

BE
E 

IS
LA

ND
, G

EO
RG

IA

The designs and concepts shown are the sole
property of Michael S. Small LLC and may not
be used without the prior written consent of
M i c h a e l  S .  S m a l l  L L C .

PO Box 1788

Tybee Island, GA 31328

912-704-1118

michaelsmall.asla@gmail.com

Drawing Title

Project #: 0

Date             

Jackson  &  Small

Associates

L a n d s c a p e  A r c h i t e c t u r e

PLANTING NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A SOIL ANALYSIS BY A QUALIFIED SOIL-TESTING LABORATORY RECOGNIZED BY THE STATE
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE STATING PERCENTAGES OF ORGANIC MATTER, GRADATION OF SAND, SILT, AND CLAY CONTENT,  CATION
EXCHANGE CAPACITY, DELETERIOUS MATERIAL, pH, AND MINERAL AND PLANT-NUTRIENT CONTENT OF TOPSOIL.  REPORT TO BE
PROVIDED TO OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH SUITABILITY REPORT OF TOPSOIL FOR LAWN AND PLANT GROWTH.
STATE RECOMMENDED QUANTITIES OF NITROGEN, PHOSPHOROUS, AND POTASH NUTRIENTS AND SOIL AMENDMENTS TO BE ADDED TO
PRODUCE A SATISFACTORY TOPSOIL.  IF ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL IS REQUIRED, CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE STOCKPILED TOPSOIL OR
IMPORTED OR MANUFACTURED TOPSOIL FREE OF ROOTS, PLANTS, SOD, STONES, CLAY LUMPS, AND OTHER EXTRANEOUS MATERIALS
HARMFUL TO PLANT GROWTH AND HAVING THE APPROPRIATE PERCENTAGES AS RECOMMENDED BY SUITABILITY REPORT.

2. ANY DEVIATION FROM THESE PLANS MUST BE SPECIFICALLY APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

3. NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF ANY SITE CONDITIONS WHICH MAY NECESSITATE MODIFICATION TO THE PLAN.  LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT SHALL, IF NECESSARY, MAKE "IN-FIELD MODIFICATIONS".

4. FINE GRADING SHALL CONSIST OF HAND RAKED SMOOTH, FREE OF DEBRIS, ALL AREAS TO RECEIVE LANDSCAPE PLANTING AND/OR
PINE STRAW MULCH.

5. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INSPECTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS AND PROMPTLY REPORTING ANY DISCREPANCIES.

6. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES AND IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE THAT MAY
OCCUR TO EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES.

7. CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM, COMPLETE AND INSTALLED.  SYSTEM TO INCLUDE ALL VALVES, PIPES,
HEADS, FITTINGS AND BACKFLOW CONTROLLER, AND TO PROVIDE 100% COVERAGE OF ALL SOD, SPRIG AND PLANTING BEDS.  SEE
IRRIGATION PLANS FOR INFORMATION.

8. MULCH ALL PLANTING BEDS WITH PINE STRAW TO A 4" DEPTH.

9. CONTRACTOR VERIFIES THAT ALL PLANT MATERIAL IS DETERMINED AVAILABLE AS SPECIFIED WHEN BID/PROPOSAL IS SUBMITTED.

10. PLANT SCHEDULE WAS PREPARED FOR ESTIMATING PURPOSES. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE OWN QUANTITY TAKEOFFS USING
DRAWINGS TO DETERMINE QUANTITIES TO HIS SATISFACTION, REPORTING PROMPTLY ANY DISCREPANCIES WHICH MAY AFFECT BIDDING.

11. ROOT TYPE MAY BE FREELY SUBSTITUTED IN CASE OF BALLED-IN-BURLAP OR CONTAINER.. OTHER SPECIFICATIONS REMAINING
UNCHANGED, EXCEPT IN THE CASE OF CONTAINER GROWN SPECIMEN TREES AS INDICATED IN THE TREE PLANTING SCHEDULE.

12. AREAS SHOWN WITH SOD ARE APPROXIMATE.  ADDITIONAL SOD MAY BE REQUIRED DURING INSTALLATION.

13. ALL TREE SHRUBS, & GROUNDCOVERS ARE TO BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF 1 YEAR BEGINNING UPON ACCEPTANCE.

14. CONRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR STAKING ANY PLANT MATERIALS IN HIGH WIND SITUATIONS OR ANY OTHER THAT WOULD REQUIRE
STAKING. CONSULT L.A. FOR PROPER STAKING TECHNIQUES.

TREE W/ BERM (EXISTING SOIL MODIFIED)

SECTION VIEW

1

SHRUB - MODIFIED SOIL

SECTION VIEW

2

GROUNDCOVER

E

Q

.

E

Q

.

PLAN

SECTION VIEW

6
"
 
m

i
n

.

3

March 6, 2019

TREES QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CAL CONT. HEIGHT/SPREAD REMARKS
QUEV 21 Southern Live Oak 4"Cal B&B 12-15` H

Quercus virginiana

SHRUBS QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CONT. HEIGHT/SPREAD LQP REMARKS
ILLP 5 Anise Tree 7 gal 30-36"

Illicium parviflorum

ASPE 23 Cast Iron Plant 3 gal 15-18"
Aspidistra elatior

PODP 15 Dwarf Podocarpus 7 gal 24-30"
Podocarpus macrophyllus `Dwarf Pringles`

DIAT 45 Flax Lily 3 gal 10-12"
Dianella tasmanica

AZAF 15 Formosa Azalea 7 gal 30-36"
Azalea indica

HYDD 3 French Hydrangea 7 gal 24-30"
Hydrangea macrophylla `Dooley`

LIGJ 2 Japanese Privet 15 gal 4-5`
Ligustrum japonicum

RHAH 4 Needle Palm 15 gal 2-3`
Rhapidophyllum hystrix

PODO 45 Podocarpus 15 gal 30-36"
Podocarpus macrophyllus

VIBS 20 Sandankwa Viburnum 7 gal 30-36"
Viburnum suspensum

CAMS 1 Shell Pink Camellia 15 gal 3-4`
Camellia sasanqua `Jean May`

VIBO 6 Sweet Viburnum 7 gal 3-4`
Viburnum odoratissimum

VINE/ESPALIER QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CONT. HEIGHT/SPREAD LQP REMARKS
TRAJ 20 Confederate Jasmine 3 gal 2-3`

Trachelospermum jasminoides `Confederate`

GROUND COVERS QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CONT HEIGHT/SPREAD LQP SPACING REMARKS
TRAA 194 Asiatic Jasmine 1 gal 4-6" 30" o.c.

Trachelospermum asiaticum `Asiatic`

DRYE 136 Autumn Fern 1 gal 10-12" 30" o.c.
Dryopteris erythrosora

LIRS 114 Super Blue Liriope 1 gal 8-10" 24" o.c.
Liriope muscari `Super Blue`

GRASSES QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CONT HEIGHT/SPREAD LQP SPACING REMARKS
MUHC 79 Pink Muhly 1 gal 12-15" 30" o.c.

Muhlenbergia capillaris

PLANT SCHEDULE

March 27, 2019

Page 31



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

15. Georgia Power Company Distributed Generation Agreement 

  

Page 32



Distributed Generation Service Agreement Page 1 of 4 
Revised December 28, 2015 

Distributed Generation (“RNR”) Service Agreement 
Georgia Power Company 

Subject to the terms and provisions of O.C.G.A. § 46-3-50 et seq. (The Georgia Cogeneration 
and Distributed Generation Act of 2001) and the rules, regulations and tariffs of Georgia Power 
Company (“Company”), the undersigned Provider herewith applies for metering and 
interconnection service and the provision of a distributed generation energy supply to the 
Company as follows: 

Georgia Power Customer Information: 

Provider’s Name (Should be the same as on the Georgia Power Account) 

Project’s Service Address 

Georgia Power Account Number 

Provider’s Mailing Address 

Contact Person, if different than account name Phone Number 

E-mail Address Fax Number 

Network Underground Customer?    Yes*      No 
*If yes, contact the Georgia Power Distributed Generation Project Manager at GPCGoRenew@southernco.com before completing.

Installer Information: 

Name Phone Number 

Address 

Installation Company 

E-mail Address Fax Number 

Page 33



Distributed Generation Service Agreement Page 2 of 4 
Revised December 28, 2015 

GENERATOR INFORMATION 
 

The Provider or Provider’s designated representative shall supply the following information. All 
applicable items must be completed in order that the Company may review the Provider’s 
generating facilities for interconnection with the Company’s distribution system. It is the 
Provider’s responsibility to construct and maintain an interconnected generator that meets safety, 
power quality, and interconnection requirements as specified in the Southern Company 
document entitled “Parallel Operation of Generation on the Distribution System”. 

              
Manufacturer & Model Number 

Type (Wind-Turbine, Photovoltaic, or Fuel cell, etc.):         

DC (Nameplate) Kilowatt (kW) Rating:           

Kilovolt-Ampere (kVA) Rating:            

Voltage Rating:        Ampere Rating:      

Number of Phases:         Frequency:       

Is this an induction generator?   Yes     No  
 
If yes, reactive power (in VARs) required is_____________ at no load and   at full 
load. 
 
Do you plan to export power?     Yes      No   
 
If yes, annual energy amount Provider expects to export (kWh):   __________    
 
Expected Start-up Date:  ____/____/______ 

Is the normal operation of this generator intended to provide power to meet base load, demand 
management, standby, back-up, or other? (Please describe):        

   

Is the required one line diagram attached?    Yes      No 

If no, please explain:    

Is the list of specifications on protective devices attached?    Yes      No 

Is the layout sketch showing lockable, “visible” disconnect device attached?    Yes      No 

Page 34



Distributed Generation Service Agreement Page 3 of 4 
Revised December 28, 2015 

METERING, INTERCONNECTION, AND BILLING INFORMATION 

Terms and conditions of Renewable and Nonrenewable Resources Tariff (RNR-8) (or its 
successor) as approved by the Georgia Public Service Commission (GPSC) are incorporated by 
reference in this document. Company reserves the right to modify this agreement during its term 
based upon modification of RNR-8 (or its successor) terms and conditions as approved by the 
GPSC. 

The Single Directional Metering Option requires two (2) meters and is only available for solar 
photovoltaic facilities. All of the solar energy produced is measured through the additional meter 
and purchased by the Company according to RNR-8 (or its successor). The Bi-directional 
Metering Option requires one (1) meter capable of measuring electricity flow in both directions 
and is available to all technologies, including solar. 

Company agrees to compensate Provider for energy deliveries according to the “Payment for 
Energy” section of RNR-8 (or its successor). Purchases under the Bi-directional Metering Option 
are only for the energy generated by the Provider, and the Provider retains environmental 
attributes. Purchases under the Single Directional Metering Option, for contracts executed before 
January 1, 2011, include any environmental attributes, however denominated, including all 
benefits and entitlements in addition to the electrical output. Purchases under the Single 
Directional Metering Option, for contracts executed after January 1, 2011, do not include any 
environmental attributes and the energy shall be purchased at avoided cost pricing. Such 
compensation may increase and/or decrease during the contract term according to current GPSC 
policy. 

Provider selects the following metering option:    Single      Bi-directional 

Provider’s equipment shall be engineered, designed, installed, maintained and operated by 
Provider at Provider’s own expense. Provider shall provide all equipment necessary to meet 
applicable safety, power quality and interconnection requirements established, from time to time, 
by the National Electrical Code, National Electric Safety Code, the Institute of Electrical and 
Electronic Engineers and Underwriters Laboratories. Provider shall comply with the 
requirements for parallel operation as established in the latest edition of Southern Company 
Parallel Operation of Generation on the Distribution System document. Copies of such 
requirements and O.C.G.A. § 46-3-50 et seq. are available from the Company. 

Company agrees to provide interconnection and metering capability at the above listed service 
address at Provider’s expense.  In addition to any initial interconnection and metering installation 
costs, the Provider is also responsible for all monthly and on-going operation and maintenance 
costs. Based on existing facilities and project scope, Company reserves the right to require that 
Provider execute the Company’s Interconnection Agreement if Provider’s generator 
interconnection requires Company facilities other than a meter. 

Provider shall pay a monthly metering service charge as specified in RNR-8 (or its successor). 
Charges shall be payable for the term of this agreement regardless of sales to the Company by 
Provider. This service charge may be updated from time to time by the Georgia Public Service 
Commission. 

Page 35



Distributed Generation Service Agreement Page 4 of 4 
Revised December 28, 2015 

Measuring energy flows shall meet the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 46-3-55. Where such 
measurement shows generation by the Provider for which a credit or payment shall be made, the 
terms and conditions of RNR-8 (or its successor) will govern compensation to the Provider. 

Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect from time to time the portions of 
Provider’s facility that interconnect or relate to the safety of the provision of energy to Company. 

Company reserves the right to disconnect Provider’s equipment from Company lines and 
facilities when in Company’s judgment continued parallel operation is unsafe or may cause 
damage to persons or property. Provider’s equipment shall also be disconnected if Provider fails 
to comply with Company’s parallel operation requirements. Upon such separation, Company 
shall promptly notify Provider so that any unsafe condition can be corrected. 

Unless terminated for default in the performance of the obligations hereunder, this agreement is 
for a term of five (5) years. In the event of an early termination or default by Provider, Provider 
shall pay the unpaid metering charges for the entire term. Notices hereunder shall be effective 
upon posting to the addresses stated hereon. 

Provider represents that any sales to Georgia Power pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed 
to be in accordance with the obligations of Georgia Power and the Georgia Public Service 
Commission pursuant to Section 210 of PURPA, 16 U.S.C. § 824a-3 and the GPSC’s orders 
thereunder. 

PROVIDER 

Name (Please print): 

Signature: 

Date: 

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 

By: 

Title:  

Acceptance Date:  

Page 36



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

16. Falcon Contract, Fireworks 

  

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

17. The Agreement (2019 Accredited Member Sublicense Form_GA_from NMSC) is attached 
for the Mayor to sign.  The signed agreement should be returned to Jessica Reynolds at 
DCA-ODD.  Once all parties have signed, an executed copy will be sent to all. 

  

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

18. Approval to hire a seasonal employee - Finance Department for May through August 
2019.  Line Item 100-1512-51.1100 

  

Page 56



MAYOR  

Jason Buelterman 
 

CITY COUNCIL  

Barry Brown Mayor Pro Tem 
Wanda Doyle 

Julie Livingston 

Jackson Butler  
Monty Parks 

John Branigin  
CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 

 

 

 

CITY MANAGER 

Shawn Gillen 
 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

Janet LeViner 
 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Edward M. Hughes 
 

 

P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 

www.cityoftybee.org 

City Council Agenda Item Request  

Council Meeting Date: April 25, 2019 

Item:  The Finance Department is seeking the City Council’s approval to hire a seasonal employee(s) from the months of 

May through August of 2019 to assist the Finance Department to assist the office staff during the busy season for a 

cost not to exceed $5,340 through June 30, 2019. 

 

 

Description:  The month of May through August is the City’s busy season.  In prior years, the Finance Department has hired 

contracted labor assistance by hiring a high school or college students and using money from unspent contract labor budgeted 

line item funds to cover the cost; thus avoiding the cost of the City paying the 6.2% of FICA and 1.45% of Medicare.  This 

summer the Finance Department will need assistance to cover the front desk waiting on customers, counting coins, 

completing the deposits, filing and assisting the Finance staff with conducting the physical inventory of the City’s capital 

assets.  For this year, the Finance Department is requesting to add the seasonal position to payroll and cover the FICA and 

Medicare cost to relieve the student(s) from that burden of paying the full 15% FICA and Medicare cost verses simply paying 

7.65%.  As in the past, the Finance Department will cover the cost for hiring the student using unexpended budgeted funds; 

this year the money will come from the Finance Accounting Divisions salary, 100.1512.51.1100, FICA 100.1512.51.2300 

and Medicare, 100.1512.51.2400 line items.  This request only covers this fiscal year; a request for funding the July through 

August if necessary will be taken place during the fiscal year 2020 budget process.   

 

 

 

 

 

Budget Line Item Number (if applicable):  100.1512.51.1100 – Salary $4,960; 100.1512.51.2200 – FICA $308; and 

100.1512.51.2300, Medicare - $72. 

 

  

 

Paper Work:      ___ _ Attached*    

     Already Distributed  

            ______ To Be Handed Out at Council Meeting (by Requester) 

            ______ Audio/Video Presentation**  

 

Submitted by:   Angela Hudson, Director of Finance and General Administration  

 

Phone / Email:__912-472-5021 ahudson@cityoftybee.org   

Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________     

____April 19, 2019_____________________________ 

Date given to Clerk of Council      

Page 57



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

19. Approve moving forward with contract with Momentum Telecom, new telephone system, 
Line Item 100-1535-52-1300 

  

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Regional Sales Manager

Momentum Telecom

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



VoIP Phone System 2019-730

Criteria
Possible 

Points

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Points 

Awarded

Pinnacle Momentum Encore Ambit TPx Vertical Jive Presidio Halski

Proposal Meets Requirements 30 15 30 25 15 25 20 28 28 28

Industry Experience 20 10 20 18 10 10 10 15 20 15

Support Resources 20 10 20 15 10 15 15 15 15 15

References 20 20 20 0 20 20 20 0 20 0

Monthly Cost 10 10 8 6 4 7 5 9 3 9

TOTAL
65 98 64 59 77 70 67 86 67

Page 138



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

20. Second Amendment to Non-Exclusive Intergovernmental Mineral License - Re-
nourishment Project 

  

Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

21. First Reading, 2019-09, Section 34-261 - Application, STVR 

  

Page 146



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE 

ISLAND, GEORGIA, REGARDING THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO  

SHORT TERM VACATION RENTALS SO AS TO REQUIRE THE REGULATION 

THEREOF, APPLICATION OF OCCUPATIONAL TAXES BE PROVIDED FOR 

IDENTIFIED LOCATIONS AND THAT DURING THE VACATION SEASON TO PROVIDE 

FOR WASTE DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES  

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, including the environment thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Section 34, relating to short term vacation rentals so as to create a 

new section to address garbage and/or waste removal requirements during the “vacation” season 

and;  

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the current code at Section 34 so 

as to revise the provisions thereof pertaining to the locations at which such short term rentals are 

conducted; and   

WHEREAS, the occupancy of short term vacation rental units is imposing an additional 

burden on the disposal of refuse within the City and creates inappropriate and unsanitary, 

unpleasant and deleterious effects and impacts upon others and therefore, an additional 

imposition of refuse removal requirements is appropriate; and 

Page 147



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, It is hereby ordained by the governing authority of the City of 

Tybee Island that The Code of Ordinances of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, including 

Chapter 34, Article VIII, and the sections thereof (Section 34-260 through 34-271) be amended 

so as to be amended as hereinafter provided.   

SECTION 1 

The existing provisions of such chapter and sections are amended so as to hereinafter 

read as follows: 

Sec. 34-261. – Application 

 

(a) Within 90 days of the effective date of the ordinance from which this article is derived, 

no person shall rent, lease or otherwise exchange for compensation all or any portion of a 

dwelling unit as a short-term vacation rental, as defined in Section 34-260, without the 

owner or rental agent first obtaining an occupation tax certificate and registering each 

STVR with the city. 

(b) The city must be notified in writing within seven days when there is a change in property 

ownership, management, agent or emergency contact.  Failure to do so will void any 

registration. 

(c) Registrant for a short-term vacation rental shall submit, on an annual basis, a registration 

for a short term vacation rental to the City of Tybee Island.  The registration shall be 

furnished on a form specified by the city manager, accompanied by a non-refundable 

registration fee as established by city council and on file with the clerk.  Such application 

should include: 

(1) The complete street address of the STVR; 

 

Page 148



3 

 

(2) Ownership, including the name, address, e-mail and telephone number of each person 

or entity with an ownership interest in the property; 

(3) The number of bedrooms, the maximum occupancy and the number of location of 

off-street parking spaces on the premises and any off-premises parking applicable; 

(4) The name, address and telephone number of a short-term vacation rental agent or 

local emergency contact if applicable; and 

(5) Any other information that this chapter requires the owner to provide to the city as 

part of the registration for a short-term vacation rental.  The city manager or his or her 

designee shall have the authority to obtain additional information from the applicant 

as necessary to achieve the objectives of this chapter. 

(6) The emergency contact number required by Section 34-265. 

(d) The registration form pursuant to this section shall be processed, and added to a database 

to be kept by staff listing STVR unit information and any citations that occur.  The city 

shall notify the owner and agent of any instances that result in a citation for a code 

violation or other legal infarction. 

 

Sec. 34-262. – Regulatory fee/renewal 

 

(a) The short-term vacation rental application shall be accompanied by an initial regulatory 

fee and be subject to an annual fee every January 1 thereafter, as established by the 

mayor and city council. 

  

Page 149



4 

 

(1) The regulatory fee shall be $100.00 per rental unit.  An application is valid when 

completed and filed along with payment of the application regulatory fee.  The fee 

shall be due January 1 of each year for short term rental purposes and, if not paid 

within 90 days thereof, shall be subject to the delinquency and penalty provisions of 

section 58-163 as applicable to occupation tax/business license provisions as well as 

the revocation of any right to use the unit for short term rental purposes until payment 

of the penalties and fee.  In addition to the regulatory fee license as specified herein, 

the applicant shall also pay the required occupation tax each year. 

(b) Each property shall be issued a registration number; 

(c) Failure to register as prescribed by this law will result in a fine of $100.00 for each month 

that the unit continues to operate without compliance, including without registration. 

(d) The annual registration of a unit and the regulatory fee are not transferrable.  In the event 

ownership of a unit changes and even if there is no change in the management company 

managing the unit, the fee upon ownership change shall be $100.00 if the change occurs 

prior to July 1 of the year and $50.00 if after July 1 of the year. 

(e) In the event a management company changes, the unit is to be re-registered by notice to 

the city and the regulatory fee will be $50.00 if the management company change is after 

July 1; otherwise, the fee is $100.00. 

 

SECTION 2 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to add the 

following section to be designated as Section 34-265 which section shall provide as follows:  

Waste Disposal Requirements During Vacation Season 

Page 150



5 

 

Solid Waste Disposal 

(a) The provisions of Section 22-191 of the Code as now or currently hereinafter 

amended are expressly made applicable to short term vacation rental operations and 

locations except as modified herein. 

(b) During the time period of each year commencing with the Saturday prior to the 

weekend of the Memorial Day holiday through the Saturday after the Labor Day 

holiday the following requirements shall be applicable:   

a. At each location of a short term vacation rental, the person or persons 

responsible for such location shall arrange and provide for refuse collection 

from the short term vacation rental location trash pickups therefrom twice 

weekly and only one of which pickups shall be the standard pick up provided 

to all residents.   

 

SECTION 3 

 The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance.   

SECTION 4 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

 

 

Page 151



6 

 
4373077.1 

000572-000572 

SECTION 5 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 6 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                         , 2019. 

 

 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ______ 

SECOND READING: ______ 

ENACTED:     

 

 
572-572-1 

Page 152



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

22. Second Reading, 2019-03, Graffiti 

  

Page 153



4358866.1 

000572-000001 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-03 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, 

REGARDING GRAFFITI 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, including the environment thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Section __________ relating to graffiti.   

NOW, THEREFORE, It is hereby ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Tybee Island that The Code of Ordinances of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Section 

_____________ dealing with graffiti so that hereafter the section and Code shall read as 

hereinafter provided. 

SECTION 1 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to cause Section 

___________ to be added so that hereafter such section shall read follows: 

 

Sec. ___________________.     

 Sec. ___-1.  Purpose and Intent.  The City Council of the City of Tybee Island is enacting 

this ordinance to help prevent the spread of graffiti vandalism and to establish a program for the 

removal of graffiti from public and private property.  The Council is authorized to enact this 

ordinance pursuant to its police powers under Georgia law, as well as the City Charter, to 

provide for the removal of graffiti from private and public property.   

 Sec. ___-2.  Findings; Nuisance.  Council finds that graffiti is a public nuisance and 

destructive of the rights and values of property owners, as well as the entire community.  Unless 

the City acts to require the removal of graffiti from public and private property, the graffiti tends 

Page 154



 2 

to remain and other properties then become the target of graffiti and entire neighborhoods are 

affected and become less desirable all to the detriment of the City.  Further, the City finds that 

rapid or prompt removal (less than 72 hours) serves as a deterrent to future defacement and such 

defacement is less likely to reappear.  The City finds that graffiti and other defacement of public 

and private property, including walls, rocks, bridges, buildings, fences, gates, signage, other 

structures, trees, and other real and personal property within the City constitutes a nuisance. 

 The City Council intends, through the adoption of this ordinance to provide additional 

enforcement tools to protect public and private property from acts of graffiti vandalism and 

defacement.  This ordinance is not intended to conflict with any existing state laws prohibiting or 

impacting graffiti.   

 Sec. ___-3.  Definitions. 

 For purposes of this ordinance, the following words shall have the meanings respectively 

subscribed to them in this section except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 (a) Aerosol paint container means any aerosol container that is adapted or made for 

the purpose of applying spray paint or other substance capable of defacing property. 

 (b) Broad tip marker means any felt tip indelible marker or similar implement with a 

flat or angled writing surface that, at its broadest width, is greater than one-fourth of an inch, 

containing ink or other pigmented liquid that is not water soluble.   

 (c) Etching equipment means any tool, device, or substance that can be used to make 

permanent marks on any natural or man-made surface.   

 (d) Graffiti means any unauthorized inscription, word, figure, painting, or other 

defacement that is written, marked, etched, scratched, sprayed, drawn, painted, or engraved on or 

otherwise affixed to any surface of public or private property by any graffiti implement to the 

Page 155



 3 

extent that the graffiti was not authorized in advance of the owner or occupant of the property or, 

despite advance authorization, is otherwise deemed a public nuisance by the City Council.  See 

also O.C.G.A. § 17-15A-2 which is incorporated herein by reference. 

 (e) Graffiti abatement shall mean the abatement procedure that identifies graffiti, 

issues notices to the landowner to abate the graffiti, and cures or removes such graffiti in absence 

of a response. 

 (f) Graffiti implement means an aerosol paint container, a broad tipped marker, gum 

label, paint stick or graffiti stick, etching equipment, brush, or any other device capable of 

scarring or leaving a visible mark on any natural or man-made surface.   

 (g) Gum label means any substance consisting of a material such as, but not limited 

to, paper, fabric, cloth, plastic, vinyl and/or any other similar material, whether the material also 

contains one or more surfaces containing a substance such as, but not limited to, any material 

commonly known adhesive or glue, which cannot be removed from the surface in an intact 

condition and with minimal efforts including, but not limited to, decals, stickers, patches, stamps, 

or labels. 

 (h) Paint stick or graffiti stick means any device confirming a solid form of paint, 

chalk, wax, epoxy, or similar substance capable of being applied to a surface by pressure and 

leaving a mark of at least one-eighth of an inch in width. 

 (i) Person means any individual, partnership, cooperative association, private 

corporation, personal representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity. 

 (j) Private contractor means any person with whom the City shall have contracted to 

remove graffiti. 

 Sec. ___-4.  Graffiti prohibited. 

Page 156



 4 

 It shall be a violation of this section for any person to write, paint, draw, carve, scratch, 

erect, or place upon any wall, rock, bridge, building, fence, gate, signage, other structure, tree or 

other real or personal property, either publicly or privately owned, any drawing, inscription, 

figure, or mark of any type which is commonly known or referred to as “graffiti.”  Any such 

“graffiti” shall be removed or eradicated within 72 hours of its first appearance. 

 Sec. ___-5.  Violation. 

 A violation of any of the provisions of this section shall be punishable by fine, restitution, 

or other penalty as provided by the City Code.   

 Sec. ___-6.  Notice to Remove. 

 (a) Whenever the City’s Code enforcement officer or his designee determines that 

graffiti exists on any private property which is visible to any person utilizing any public road, 

parkway, alley, sidewalk, or other right of way or any public park or property, the Code 

enforcement officer shall cause a notice to be issued to abate such nuisance.  The property owner 

shall be given three (3) days from the date of the notice to remove the graffiti or the same will be 

subject to abatement by the City. 

 (b) The notice to abate graffiti pursuant to this section shall be a written notice and 

shall be served upon the owner(s) of the affected property, as such owner(s) name and address 

appears on the last property tax assessment rolls of Chatham County, Georgia.  If there is no 

known address for the owner, the notice shall be sent to the property address.  The notice may be 

served in any of the following manners: 

  (1) By personal service on the owner, occupant, or manager of the property; 

  (2) By registered or certified mail addressed to the owner; or 

  (3) By posting a copy on the property. 

Page 157



 5 

 Sec. ___-7.  Removal by City; lien. 

 Upon failure of the owner(s) to comply with the notice to remove, the code enforcement 

officer shall issue a notice to appear before the code enforcement board.  The City Manager shall 

be permitted to allow the city or private contractor to remove the graffiti and charge any costs 

associated with removal to the owner of the property.  The City Manager shall not be limited to 

removal by the city or a private contractor and may allow any fines, restitution, or other penalty 

to become a lien against the property. 

SECTION 2 

 The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance.   

SECTION 3 

 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

SECTION 4 
 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 5 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

Page 158



 6 

 ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                         , 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

          

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ______ 

SECOND READING: ______ 

ENACTED:     

 

 
572-572-1 

Page 159



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

23. First Reading, 2019-04, Sec 22-33, Disorderly Household 

  

Page 160



 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. 07___-20189 

(Previously 07-2018) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

BY ADDING AN ARTICLE DEFINING AND 

REGULATING A DISORDERLY HOUSE NUISANCE 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and 

home rule powers, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Tybee Island to define and regulate a disorderly house nuisance, 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the governing authority of the City of Tybee 

Island that Chapter 22 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Tybee Island is hereby amended 

to create a new article to be designated as Article IIA, Disorderly House Nuisance to hereafter 

read as follows: 

ARTICLE IIA  DISORDERLY HOUSE NUISANCE CODE. 

SECTION 22-33  GENERAL DEFINITIONS.  
 

For the purposes of this Article, the following definitions shall apply: 

 

1.  “Dwelling” means a house, duplex, condominium unit, apartment building,      

       mobile home, manufactured home, trailer or any other structure(s) or place(s) 

       used or intended to be used for human habitation, including common areas 

       within the structure when buildings or structures are used for more than one 

       (1) dwelling, and accessory buildings such as garages located on the same  

       Premises. 

 

2.  “In or on the premises of any Dwelling” means either within a dwelling or the  

      area within the boundary lines of any real property of the same ownership on 

      which such dwelling is located. 

 

 

Page 161



 2 

 

3.  “Occupant” means any person who lives in or has possession of, or holds an 

       occupancy interest in, a Dwelling; or any person residing in or frequenting the 

       premises of the Dwelling with the actual or implied permission of the Owner  

       or lessee. 

 

4.  “Owner” means any person, agent, operator, firm or corporation having a legal 

       or equitable interest in the Dwelling; or one with an interest recorded in the official 

       records of the state, county or municipality as holding title to the Dwelling; or 

       otherwise having a control of the Dwelling, including the guardian of the estate of  

       any such person, and the executor or administrator of the estate of such person if  

       ordered to take possession of such property by a court. 

 

SECTION 22-34   DISORDERLY HOUSE NUISANCE DEFINED.  
 

A “Disorderly House Nuisance” is a Dwelling within which, or on the premises of which,  

any of the following offense(s) have occurred within a three hundred sixty-five (365) day 

period. 

 

1.  One or more felonies or Three (3) misdemeanors, arising out of separate, and distinct  

     facts and circumstances, as defined by the statutes of the State of Georgia, and/or 

     the ordinances of the City of Tybee Island; or  

 

2.  Three (3) or more violations of Chapter 10 of the Code of the City of Tybee Island, 

     relating to animals and fowls, arising out of separate and distinct facts and  

     circumstances; or  

 

3.  Three (3) or more violations of Article II, Article III, or Article IV of Chapter 22 of  

the Code of the City of Tybee Island, relating to nuisances, property maintenance, 

and/or noises arising out of separate and distinct facts and circumstances; or 

 

4. Three (3) or more violations of Chapter 42 of the Code of the City of Tybee Island, 

     relating to various offenses, arising out of separate and distinct facts and   

     circumstances; or  

 

5.  A combination of three (3) offenses s from any of the above categories, arising out of  

     separate and distinct facts and circumstances. 

 

SECTION 22-35  VIOLATION. 

 

1. No owner or occupant or manager of any Dwelling shall allow or permit such  

Dwelling to be, or become, a Disorderly House Nuisance. 

 

2.  An owner and/or occupant, as the case may be, shall be deemed to have allowed 

     or permitted a Dwelling to be, or become, a Disorderly House Nuisance, if: 

 

Page 162



 3 

 

 a.  The owner or occupant has personally committed the acts set  

      forth in Section 22-34; or  

 

 b.  Such acts were committed by invitees of the occupant or  

      owner; or  

 

 c.  Such acts were committed by persons attending events, or  

      functions, sponsored, permitted or allowed by the occupant or 

      owner; or  

   

  d.  Such acts were committed by a combination of subsections a, b 

       or c; or  

 

  e.  The owner, occupant and manager, if any, has or have been provided with the  

written notice of a Disorderly House Nuisance pursuant to Section 22-36,   

below, the facts alleged therein are true, and the owner or occupant  and/or 

manager fails or refuses to enter into a Nuisance Abatement Agreement, or 

after entering into such Agreement, fails to comply with its terms. 

 

ANY NOTICE OF ABATEMENT DECISION OR AGREEMENT AND THE 

REQUIREMENTS THEREIN SHALL ATTACH TO THE PROPERTY 

INVOLVED REGARDLESS OF ANY CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP, 

OCCUPANCY OR MANAGEMENT AND ANY SUCH AGREEMENT OR 

DECISION  SHALL SO PROVIDE 

 

 SECTION 22-36   WRITTEN NOTICE OF DISORDERLY HOUSE NUISANCE. 

  

No person shall be prosecuted for a violation of Section 22-35 until the Director of  

Community Development-Economic Director or such similar position as then exists  

(hereafter “Director”), or his designee, shall serve such person or persons or entity  with 

the notice provided herein, and the persons, or entity have or has either failed, or refused, 

to enter into the Nuisance Abatement Agreement, provided for hereinafter, or after 

entering into such Agreement, fails to comply with its provisions. Such Notice may be 

served on any person by personal service, or in the case of an occupant who has not been 

personally served,  by restricted mail addressed to the address of the Dwelling, or, in the 

 case of a Non-Occupant Owner, by restricted mail to his/her last known address, or, if  

 none, to the address to which any tax statement is provided to such owner for the  

Dwelling and in the case of a property manager, to the business address of such manager. 

Such notice shall contain, at a minimum, the following: 

 

 1.  That a Disorderly House Nuisance exists, as defined by Section 22-34, at the  

      location specified in the notice. 

 

 2.  The date of the commission of the acts which constitute the basis for the Disorderly 

      House Nuisance, the name(s) of the person(s) committing such acts, if known, and  

Page 163



 4 

the offense committed, the violation time, date and type and the code section making 

such conduct or occurrence an offense with the case number, if applicable, and include 

a notice that additional violations of laws or ordinances at the location may result in 

the suspension or cancellation of a business permit or license to operate a non-owner 

occupied residential dwelling STVR at the location following a hearing or an 

opportunity for a hearing thereon before the city manager. 

 

 3.  The date, time and place where the person is to appear, and meet with the Director 

      or his designee, to participate in the Nuisance Abatement Conference. 

 

 4.  That failure to appear, or failure to make satisfactory arrangements for an  

      alternative date and time, at the time and place designated in the notice may 

      result in prosecution of a violation of Section 22-35 and the imposition of  

      penalties, as proscribed by the Article and the Code of Ordinances. 

 

 SECTION 22-37   NUISANCE ABATEMENT CONFERENCE.   
 

At the nuisance abatement conference, the Director or his designee, and the owner  

And/or occupant, and/or manager shall discuss the facts constituting the Disorderly 

House Nuisance and shall attempt to agree on specific actions that the owner and/or 

occupant can take to abate said Disorderly House Nuisance. 

 

 SECTION 22-38   NUISANCE ABATEMENT AGREEMENT.   
  

1.  At the conclusion of the nuisance abatement conference, the Director or his  

      designee shall submit to the owner and/or occupant a proposed written nuisance 

      abatement agreement. If at the conclusion of the conference, the Director 

      or his designee needs more time to draft said proposed agreement, then a follow- 

      up meeting shall be scheduled with the owner and/or occupant, within ten (10) 

      days of the initial conference for submittal and review of the completed proposed 

      nuisance abatement agreement. 

 

 2.  Any nuisance abatement agreement under this article shall include a list of  

      specific actions and specific schedule of deadlines for said actions to abate the  

      Disorderly House Nuisance. It may also include provisions for a periodic 

      reassessment of the agreement effectiveness, and the procedure for a modification 

      of the agreement. A nuisance abatement agreement or any written modification 

      to said agreement may impose conditions or requirements on the owner and/or  

     occupant and/or manager for a period of twelve(12) months from the date of the        

original agreement entered into by the owner and/or occupant and/or manager and the 

City. A nuisance abatement agreement may impose one or more of the following 

conditions or requirements on the owner and/or occupant. 

 

  a.  Eviction of identified individuals from the dwelling in question, 

 

 

Page 164



 5 

  b.  Written notification from the owner and/or occupant and/or manager to an  

        identified individual or individuals that they are prohibited from entering onto 

        the Premises of the Dwelling, 

 

  c.  Utilization of written leases containing a provision or provisions  

       requiring eviction for criminal activity, 

 

  d.  The completion of improvements upon the Premises of the Dwelling 

       which have the impact of mitigation of  crime, including but not limited 

       to the erection of fences, installation of security devises upon the  

         entrances or increased lighting, 

 

  e.  Any other reasonable condition or requirement designated to  

       abate the Disorderly House Nuisance. 

 

3.  Once a proposed written nuisance abatement agreement or written modification 

      to nuisance abatement agreement has been submitted to the owner and/or  

occupant and/or manager said owner and/or occupant and/or manager  shall have   

forty- eight (48) hours to review it and enter into said agreement by signing it and 

returning it to the Community Development Director or his designee. 

 

 SECTION 22-39  COMMENCEMENT OF PROSECUTION.   
 

The Director or his designee, may commence prosecution alleging a violation of this  

Article under the following circumstances: 

 

 1.  The owner and/or occupant does not attend a conference with the City within 

      the time period described previously. 

 

 2.  The owner and/or occupant fails or refuses to sign a proposed written nuisance 

      abatement agreement or proposed written modification to said agreement  

      within the prescribed time period set forth in this section. 

 

 3.  The owner and/or occupant agent subsequently fails or refuses to comply with 

      any conditions or requirements set forth in a nuisance abatement agreement, 

      including any prescribed deadlines for taking particular actions.  

 

Sec. 22-39.1.  NON-OWNER OCCUPIED SHORT TERM RENTAL PROPERTIES. 

 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Code, in the event the property or dwelling 

in question is a location authorized or permitted for non-owner occupied short term 

vacation rentals, the permit and/or occupational tax certificate and/or license for the 

operation of such location may be revoked for ordinance or other violations as provided 

herein.  Such revocation may occur following a notice being delivered to the owner, 

occupant and/or agency managing the property from the city manager requiring that an 

administrative hearing before the manager be held.  Following such a hearing, or an effort 

Page 165



 6 

to hold such a hearing in the event that the owner, occupier, or agent does not appear, the 

manager is authorized to suspend, revoke, place on probation with restrictions, or take 

other appropriate action with regard to the permit, occupational tax certificate, or 

business license for the location.  The owner, occupant, or agent may appeal the 

manager’s decision to the Superior Court of Chatham County but, in the absence of a 

court order providing otherwise, the decision of the manager goes in force immediately, 

and an appeal does not act as a supersedeas.  At the option of the manager, the procedures 

of Sec. 34-39 may be used to address license revocation proceedings in lieu of the above. 

 

 SECTION 22-40  ACTION TO ABATE PENALTIES.   
 

In addition to prosecution of the offense defined in this Article or pursuing any other  

remedies available under this  Code, the Director or his designee, upon receipt of reliable  

information that any Dwelling within the corporate limits of the City is being maintained  

as a Disorderly House Nuisance, may prosecute an action for equitable relief, in the name  

of the City, to abate the nuisance and to enjoin any person who shall own, rent, or occupy  

the Dwelling in question from using or permitting its use in violation of the provisions of  

this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 22-41  JUDGMENT.   
 

No judgment finding a violation of this ordinance shall be entered against an owner 

and/or occupant who has, in good faith, endeavored to prevent the nuisance. Any owner  

and/or occupant who has complied with all conditions or requirements of a nuisance  

abatement agreement and any modifications to said agreement, as defined by the 

ordinance, shall be deemed to have endeavored in good faith to prevent the nuisance. 

 

 SECTION 22-42  PENALTIES.   
 

Upon a finding of guilt under this Article, the Court may, in addition to other remedies  

permitted by the Code, impose a term of probation for a term of up to one (1) year,  

conditioned on any or all of the following: 

 

 1.  The completion of improvements upon the Premises of the Dwelling which  

      have the impact of mitigating crime and criminal activity, including but not  

      limited to the erection of fences, installation of security devices or increased  

      lighting; and  

 

2.  Requirement of a written lease for occupants which includes provisions  

      requiring eviction for criminal activity;  

 

 3.  Submitting tenancy lists on a periodic basis to the Police Department; 

 

 4.  Posting a cash bond of no less than the minimum fine and up to the amount 

      of the maximum fine for the period of court supervision or conditional 

      discharge imposed by the Court, such bond to be retained by the Court in 

Page 166



 7 

      an interest bearing account and conditioned on successful completion of the 

      period of court supervision on conditional discharge. 

 

 5.  Any other condition reasonably related to the objective of abating the  

      Disorderly House Nuisance. 

 

 The paragraph, section, or article numbers referred to herein and the order thereof may be 

changed or renumbered in the codification process without further action by the Mayor and 

Council. 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective on ________ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2019. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

Page 167



 8 
4372506.1 

000572-000572 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:   

ENACTED:     

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 168



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

24. Second Reading, 2019-06, Sec 6-5 and 6-6, Fingerprints 

  

Page 169



ORDINANCE NO. 6-2019 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, 

SO AS TO AMEND PROVISIONS THEREOF AS TO 

ALCOHOL LICENSING AND PROCEDURE OR RELATING __________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, including the environment thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to AMEND Chapter 6, Sections 6-5 and 6-6, 

6-88 and 6-89 and to repeal conflicting ordinances and for other purposes.   

NOW, THEREFORE, It is hereby ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Tybee Island that The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Chapter 6, and the designat4ed 

sections described below are hereby amended so that hereafter the sections and Code shall read 

as hereinafter provided. 

SECTION 1 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to cause Chapter 

6 to be amended so as to hereafter read as shown below. 

 

Sec. 6-5. – Reporting to City/Police – Licensee.   

 (a) Prior to or at the time of submitting an application, the applicant for a license or permit 

issued under the terms of this article and the owner of the proposed business shall submit 

themselves for fingerprinting as provided by law and in accordance with city procedures as 

directed by the city manager.  

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person or the holder of any wholesale liquor, beer or wine 

licenses or the holder of any retail liquor, beer or wine licenses to operate thereunder any 

place of business without having a registration card signed by the chief of police.  

(Code 1983, § 9-2-6)  

Page 170



 2 

SECTION 2 

 The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Chapter 6, Section 6, is hereby amended so as to 

hereafter read as follows: 

 

Sec. 6-6. - Same—Employees.  

 

All employees shall, within 72 hours after the date of their first work in an establishment  

covered under the terms of this article, submit themselves for fingerprinting as provided by law  

and in accordance with city procedures as directed by the city manager.  

 (Code 1983, § 9-2-7)  

SECTION 3 

 The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance.   

SECTION 4 

 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

 

SECTION 5 

 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 6 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                         , 2019. 

Page 171



 3 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

          

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ______ 

SECOND READING: ______ 

ENACTED:     

 

 
572/1/Ordin 2018 fireworks 02.12.18 
  

Page 172



 4 
4375257.1 

000572-000572 

 

Page 173



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

25. Second Reading, 2019-07, Sec 6-88, Application Required and Sec 6-89, Issuance 

  

Page 174



 
2019-07, Sec 6-88 and 89 
Sec. 6-88. - Application required.  

Every person engaged within the city limits in carrying on the business of handling or selling malt 
beverages, as allowed by the act of the state legislature approved March 23, 1985 (known as the Beer 
License Act), at wholesale, or retail, and every person hereafter intending to carry on such business in 
said city, as aforesaid, shall before continuing said business, or engaging therein, file with the clerk of the 
city an application for a permit to conduct and carry on such business; said application shall  set forth the 
location and building where such business is being conducted or is to be conducted.  

(Code 1983, § 9-2-31) 

Sec. 6-89. - Issuance.  
(a)  The city shall grant a license or permit hereunder when the same is found to be in the public interes t 

and general welfare of the citizens of the city. All persons to whom such permit or license shall be 
issued shall take such permit or license subject to the same being revoked at any time as herein 
provided; such permit shall not be transferable. Permits or licenses so granted shall expire at the end 
of each calendar year, and may be renewed only in the manner and form as provided in this article 
for the ordinal granting of permits and licenses.  

(b)  The city, in determining whether or not any license or permit applied for hereunder shall be granted, 
shall consider the following standards as indicative or whether or not the granting of said license or 
permit is in the public interest and general welfare:  

(1)  The applicant's reputation, character and mental and physical capacity to conduct a business 
engaged in the sale of malt beverages;  

(2)     That the applicant has not been convicted within ten years prior to the filing of the application 
of illegally possessing, transporting or selling malt beverages, and that he has never been 
convicted of an offense involving moral turpitude or a felony.  

(23)  The location for which the license is sought relative to traffic congestion, general character of 
the neighborhood and the effect such as establishment would have on the adjacent and 
surrounding property value;  

(34)  The number of licenses previously granted for similar businesses in the trading area of the 
place for which the license is sought;  

(45)  The proximity of the location of said establishment to schools, churches, libraries and other 
public buildings in the surrounding area;  

(56)  If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell malt beverages, whether or not the 
applicant or his establishment has violated any law, regulation or ordinance relating to such 
business; and  

(67)  If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell malt beverages, the manner in which 
business was conducted thereunder requiring unusual police observation and inspection 
including the number and frequency of complaints filed by citizens objecting to the manner of 
conducting business at said location.  

(c)  It shall be the policy of the city to deny a license to any establishment not meeting the standards set forth 
in this section. 

(Code 1983, § 9-2-32) 

  

Formatted: Table Normal1

Page 175



ORDINANCE NO. 7-2019 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, 

SO AS TO AMEND PROVISIONS THEREOF AS TO  

ACOHOL LICENSING AND PROCEDURE OR RELATING _____ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, including the environment thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend Chapter 6, Sections 6-5 and 6-6, 6-

88 and 6-89 and, to repeal conflicting ordinances and for other purposes.   

NOW, THEREFORE, It is hereby ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Tybee Island that The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Chapter 6, and the designated 

sections described below are hereby amended so that hereafter the sections and Code shall read 

as hereinafter provided. 

SECTION 1 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to cause Chapter 

6, Section 88, to be amended so as to hereafter read as follows: 

Sec. 6-88. - Application required.  

 

Every person engaged within the city limits in carrying on the business of handling or 

selling malt beverages, as allowed by the act of the state legislature approved March 23, 1985 

(known as the Beer License Act), at wholesale, or retail, and every person hereafter intending to 

carry on such business in said city, as aforesaid, shall before continuing said business, or 

engaging therein, file with the clerk of the city an application for a permit to conduct and carry 

on such business; said application shall set forth the location and building where such business is 

being conducted or is to be conducted.  

(Code 1983, § 9-2-31)  

Page 176



 2 

SECTION 2 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to cause Chapter 

6, Section 88, to be amended so as to hereafter read as follows: 

 

Sec. 6-89. - Issuance.  

 

(a)  The city shall grant a license or permit hereunder when the same is found to be in the 

public interest and general welfare of the citizens of the city. All persons to whom such 

permit or license shall be issued shall take such permit or license subject to the same being 

revoked at any time as herein provided; such permit shall not be transferable. Permits or 

licenses so granted shall expire at the end of each calendar year, and may be renewed only in 

the manner and form as provided in this article for the ordinal granting of permits and 

licenses.  

(b)  The city, in determining whether or not any license or permit applied for hereunder shall 

be granted, shall consider the following standards as indicative or whether or not the 

granting of said license or permit is in the public interest and general welfare:  

(1)  The applicant's reputation, character and mental and physical capacity to conduct a 

business engaged in the sale of malt beverages;  

(2)     That the applicant has not been convicted within ten years prior to the filing of the 

application of illegally possessing, transporting or selling malt beverages, and that he 

has never been convicted of an offense involving moral turpitude or a felony.  

(3)  The location for which the license is sought relative to traffic congestion, general 

character of the neighborhood and the effect such as establishment would have on the 

adjacent and surrounding property value;  

(4)  The number of licenses previously granted for similar businesses in the trading area of 

the place for which the license is sought;  

(5)  The proximity of the location of said establishment to schools, churches, libraries and 

other public buildings in the surrounding area;  

Page 177



 3 

(6)  If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell malt beverages, whether or not the 

applicant or his establishment has violated any law, regulation or ordinance relating to 

such business; and  

(7)  If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell malt beverages, the manner in 

which business was conducted thereunder requiring unusual police observation and 

inspection including the number and frequency of complaints filed by citizens objecting 

to the manner of conducting business at said location.  

(c)  It shall be the policy of the city to deny a license to any establishment not meeting the 

standards set forth in this section. 

(Code 1983, § 9-2-32)  

SECTION 3 

 The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance.   

SECTION 4 

 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

 

SECTION 5 
 

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

 

Page 178



 4 

SECTION 6 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

 ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                         , 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

          

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ______ 

SECOND READING: ______ 

ENACTED:     

 

 
572/1/Ordin 2018 fireworks 02.12.18 
  

Page 179



 5 
4375264.1 

000572-000572 

 

Page 180



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

26. Second Reading, 2019-08, Sec 2-010, Terms and Definitions, Height of Building 

  

Page 181



  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-08 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, 

TO AMEND SECTION 2-0lO(B), DEFINITIONS, TO CHANGE 

THE DEFINITION OF HEIGHT OF BUILDING 
 

 
WHEREAS, the duly  elected governing authority for the City  of Tybee Island, Georgia,  is 

authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt 

reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is the 

 
Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 
WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under it police,  zoning, and 

home rule powers, and 

WHEREAS, recent amendments to the Code pertaining to the measurement of the height 

of  buildings   in  connection  with  construction  on  improved   structures,  including  the  battery, 

necessitate providing  for revisions  to the definition of Height of building; and 

 

WHEREAS, the governing  authority  desires  to amend  Section  2-01O(B), Definitions, so 

as to change  the definition of Height of building , 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, It is  hereby  ordained  by  the  governing authority  of  the  City  of 

Tybee  Island  that Section 2-01O(B), Definitions, shall delete  the current  definition of Height of 

Building so as to hereafter  read as hereinafter provided. 

 

SECTION 1 

 
The Code of Ordinances is hereby amended  so as to revise Section 2-01 O(B), Definitions, so 

that the definition of Height of building shall hereafter  read as follows: 

 
Sec. 2-010. 

 
B.  Definitions. 

Page 182



  

 

Height of building unless otherwise specifically defined or descri bed by ordinance, 

means the vertical distance measured from the average adjacent grade of the building to 

the extreme high point of the building, exclusive of chimneys, heating units, ventilation 

ducts, air conditioning units, and similar appurtenances.  The portion of an elevator shaft 

necessary for the operation of an elevator may extend above 35 feet but no elevator doors 

may open above 35 feet without a variance. 

 
SECTION2 

 
The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance. 

SECTION 3 

 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

 
SECTION 4 

 
It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance  shall  become effective  and be made a pmi of the Code  of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 5 

 
This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

the ordinances of the City. 

ADOPTED THIS  DAY OF _  , 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAYOR  

 

Page 183



  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Reading _____________ 

 

 

Second Reading ___________ 

 

 

Enacted _________________

Page 184



  

 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

 

Page 185



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

27. Second Reading, 2019-10, Sec 5-090, Variances 

  

Page 186



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-10 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, 

REGARDING VARIANCES 

 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia 

to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, including the environment thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, 

is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Section 5-090, relating to variances.   

NOW, THEREFORE, It is hereby ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Tybee Island that The Code of Ordinances of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, Section 5-090 

dealing with variances so that hereafter the section and Code shall read as hereinafter provided. 

 

SECTION 1 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is hereby amended so as to cause Section 

5-090(B) to be amended so that hereafter such sub-section shall read follows: 

 

Sec. 5-090. Variances.     

(B) Height.  No part of any structure shall project beyond 35-feet above the average adjacent 

grade of a property except; 

(1) See 2-010.  Terms and definitions; Height of building. 

(2) The following items that were existing on the date of the adoption of this 

ordinance; flag poles, television aerials, water towers and tanks, steeples and 

bell towers, broadcasting and relay towers, transmission line towers, and 

electric substation structures. 

 

 

 

Page 187



 2 

SECTION 2 

 The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable 

and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance shall be declared 

illegal or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

illegality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 

sections of this ordinance.   

SECTION 3 

 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

SECTION 4 

  

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 5 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                         , 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

MAYOR 

          

ATTEST: 

 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING: ______ 

SECOND READING: ______ 

ENACTED:     

Page 188



 3 
4376298.1 

000572-000572 

 
572-572-1 

Page 189



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

29. Jason Buelterman - Finance Committee Notes and Recommendations 

  

Page 190



Attendees: Jason Beulterman, John Branigin, Monty Parks, Shawn Gillen, Angela Hudson, Nalene 

Conway 

Jason called the meeting to order. 

New Business: 

Jason Beulterman – Determine set amount or percentage of budget to maintain in fund balance 

Jason asked Shawn and Angela for thoughts on this. 

Shawn asked Angela what our annual general fund revenues are.  

Angela replied that last year we took in $11.3 million. She stated in doing the budget we are at $7 

million in terms of payroll and personnel. Payroll is at 65% 

Shawn advised the committee that the number the study came up with was $3.5 million needed to 

respond to a hurricane. He stated it is possible to get all or most of that back but it takes time. The 

question is what we need beyond that to have sufficient reserves for good bond readings or the ability 

to respond to another emergency within the same year. Shawn used $9 million as an example. $9 

million is about 85% of revenues on an annual basis. 

Jason asked Shawn if he was suggesting if we set $9 million as the amount. 

Angela suggested $10 million and stated several debts that could occur if something happens to the 

island. 

Monty stated that he thinks $10 million is excessive. He stated that at some point we owe it to the tax 

payers to ease back a little. Monty stated we are adding parking spaces and increasing parking rates. He 

mentioned that hotel/motel only goes up as those rates increase.  

Angela stated as of right now we are at $9.5 in revenues. She stated our trend with the exception of last 

year (transferring $800,000 in to the Campground fund to make it whole again) is we have traditionally 

been bringing in a lot more revenue of a million dollars or more. 

Shawn stated we have to do some capital projects. He stated we can’t just rely on SPLOST to do that, 

and we need to be in the position to use some general fund revenues (revenues over expenditures). 

Shawn asked Angela if we set it at $10 million would we still have that flexibility to do the $500k and $1 

million in capital projects of general fund.  

Angela stated that people can also look at operating cost.  

Monty asked if we could dedicate money to separate accounts/programs instead of only having a 

general fund reserve. 

The committee discussed this as an option. 

Shawn suggested instead of picking a flat number, determine a percentage.  

John stated he thinks it is reasonable to set a floor as long as we can justify the amount based on 

potential issues. He stated he doesn’t think we need to grow the fund balance anymore. John stated he 

would like to take the money that would have gone to grow the fund balance and put it towards capital. 

Page 191



Jason stated he agreed with setting a percentage that will be enabled to grow and dedicate everything 

above towards capital.  

Monty stated the reason he suggested reserve accounts was because it makes it more transparent more 

than it sitting in general fund.  

The committee discussed fund balance and designation according to GASB rules. 

Shawn advised that enterprise funds are intended to be self-sufficient. He stated that utility is supposed 

to have a rate structure that should sustain it operationally and capital wise in to perpetuity. He stated if 

subsidizing with general fund dollars you are artificially lowering those rates. 

Jason asked Shawn to work with his team to come up with a percentage and make a recommendation to 

City Council with the additional money being designated for capital. 

He stated to Monty if council thinks what he is suggesting is this is the best way to move forward they 

can make that recommendation.  

The committee discussed. 

Monty made a motion that staff develop a reserve general fund amount based on percentage of annual 

income, revenue, or operating expense and present to council as being the reserve amount with the 

amount above to be dedicated toward capital means. John seconded. All were in favor. 

John Branigan – Mobile 911 surcharges 

John stated that according to the GMA update, the money from the 911 surcharges now goes from the 

telecoms to the Georgia Department of revenue rather than directly to the counties. He stated that he 

pulled his landline phone bill and at the very bottom under the 911 fees it states “based on our records 

your CUI number is GA0911, your regulatory address is Tybee Island”. He advised that we watch when 

we get our allotment from the Department of Revenue because a couple things could happen. 

 They may be more accurate in figuring out how many registered phones there are on Tybee 

Island so our amount could go up.  

 It could stay relatively the same in which case we are still getting underpaid.  

 The worst case would be the Georgia Department of Revenue decides Tybee Island is in 

Chatham County, it all goes to Chatham County in which case we don’t get anything. 

John stated that the best news out of this is now there is one entity that we have a better chance to try 

to get this cleared up so we are getting our equitable fair share of that 911 money.  

Angela stated that we are getting some of the prepaid fees.  

Jason stated we have been waiting for written confirmation that they won’t hit us up with a bill two 

years down the road.  

The committee discussed there were a lot of kinks to be worked out. 

John made a motion to have Angela keep an eye on our 911 reimbursements and see if she can draw 

any conclusion about whether we are still being underpaid. Monty seconded the motion. All were in 

favor. 

Page 192



John Branigan – Solid waste subsidy 

John stated that he personally thinks it is wrong to be subsidizing what we charge for solid waste 

Shawn stated it is his understanding there are two pieces that cause a general fund subsidy of solid 

waste fund.  

 Steven’s Day exemption 

 The City is charged yard waste pick up. The charge is not extended to the customer. 

John stated he does not believe this is very transparent. 

Jason asked what it would cost each home to pay for yard waste. 

Nalene replied that the city is paying $4.64 per home, approximately 2,600 residents bringing the 

monthly total to $12,041. 

The committee discussed whether or not to continue subsidies and reviewed the current amounts being 

subsidized.  

The committee discussed the purpose of the Steven’s Day subsidy is to relieve the residents of rate 

increases. 

The committee discussed the option of modifying or possibly terminating the contract with Atlantic 

Waste saving the citizens and the city (in subsidies) approximately $240,000 per year. 

John stated an option of not billing people directly period and just have the city pay for it as part of city 

services. 

Jason stated he wanted to figure out a way to get the cost everyone pays for yard debris through 

subsidy and taxes down. 

The committee discussed parameters for a proposal. 

John stated that we have two separate issues. 

 Not getting the service from Atlantic Waste on a city wide basis that we should be 

 General fund subsidizing enterprise fund 

Jason asked Shawn what the motion should be.  

Shawn stated the motion should be to assess alternative means of yard waste collection that would 

lower the subsidization of yard waste collection in the solid waste fund. 

John stated that he thinks we should table all of this and pay greater attention to the RFP that we put 

together and when we get the results of the RFP we ask the staff to come up with a rate structure that 

fully funds what the city has to pay. 

The committee agreed to hold off. 

John Branigin – Water/Sewer Rates 

Page 193



Jason asked if he could make a suggestion that we consider doing the same thing with the CPI to the 

rates that we do with all the impact fees for developers that would be in construction and any other 

impact fees where the money goes straight to water and sewer.  

The committee discussed.  

Monty made a motion to get a list of impact fees that would be affected by a CPI increase.  John 

seconded. All were in favor. 

John stated we need to act with some sense of urgency to figure out how we are going to get from here 

to there. There being ten years out when we start construction of the new sewer treatment facility. He 

stated he thinks it’s up to the Infrastructure Committee to come up with a road map for how to get 

things done. He stated he thinks the Finance Committee needs to play a role in figuring out what the 

strategy is to making sure we can pay for it.  

Monty suggested moving some money out of general fund and start the fund, put seed money in there 

now.  

The committee discussed whether or not the percentage of the increase in demand based on R2 build 

out is minimal.  

Shawn advised the committee;  

 Use caution subsidizing utility fund with general fund dollars because over time that can cause 

neglect to the system. 

 Courtney is giving a starting point and does assume full build out. 

 If new SPLOST passes some of that can be used and is not general fund subsidy but instead using 

one time dollars for one time expenditure. 

 There are two types of structures Courtney recommended.  

 The 3,000 citizens of Tybee aren’t the ones driving the water demand, so how do you push the 

cost to those driving the demand.  

 Get a list of the highest users top to bottom, commercial and residential and then cross 

reference those addresses with our short term vacation rental database or homestead 

exemption data. Courtney’s study only gave top ten.  

The committee discussed if Infrastructure and Finance Meetings will give enough focus. 

Monty stated he thinks it a good idea to have Planning Commission look at the R-2 definition. 

Shawn stated the Master Plan Implementation Committee is in their charge, was to go through the 

caring capacity study and this is an outgrowth of the caring capacity study. He stated they are eager to 

help. 

Jason stated we need to know how much money we actually need. 

John made a motion to charge the Master Plan Implementation Committee with coming up with a list of 

assumptions either from Courtney’s study or rethinking those that can become the input into the 

infrastructure analysis which can then drive the financial discussion. Monty seconded the motion. 

Page 194



Jason requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. Monty made the motion. John seconded. The 

meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 195



Page 196



Page 197


	Top
	1. Tybee Island Youth Council
	2. Resolution - Georgia Cities Week
	Georgia Cities Week 2019.docx

	3. Proclamation, Volunteer Month
	Volunteer Month.docx

	4. Minutes, April 11, 2019
	20190411Minutes.docx

	5. Minutes, Special Meeting, April 17, 2019
	20190417Minutes.docx

	6. Sam LeCates, Tybee Island Youth Council, Ambassadors
	7. Historic Preservation Commission Update:  Martha (Marty) Harrell
	8. Carolyn Jurick, Tybee Island Maritime Academy
	9. Jack Boylston - Beach Bum Parade
	10. Jenny Rutherford, Beach Equipment Rental
	11. Agenda Request: Alcohol License: Liquor/Beer/Wine/Sunday Sales-Tybee RE Operating Company LLC dba Hotel Tybee
	2019-Agenda Request-Tybee RE Operating Compahy LLC dba Hotel Tybee-Alcohol License Request.pdf

	12. Cintas Uniform Contract
	Uniform Contract.pdf

	13. Agreement, 4-H Facility, Tybee Island Youth Council
	tybbe island youth council contract 10192019.pdf

	14. Brent Watts, Additional structure at 15 Meddin
	15 Meddin LS Plans rev 3-27-19.pdf

	15. Georgia Power Company Distributed Generation Agreement
	RNR-9_DG_Contract_Form.pdf

	16. Falcon Contract, Fireworks
	Fireworks contract & ltr.pdf (493KB) 04.36.07 PM{4372713.1}.pdf

	17. Agreement, 2019 Accredited Member Sub-license Form GA from NMSC
	2019 Accredited Member Sublicense Form_GA_from NMSC_.pdf

	18. Approval to hire a seasonal employee - Finance Department for May through August 2019.  Line Item 100-1512-51.1100
	Agenda Item April 25 2019 Seasonal Employee for Finance.docx

	19. Approve moving forward with contract with Momentum Telecom, new telephone system, Line Item 100-1535-52-1300
	Momentum.pdf
	Matrix_RFP 2019-730 VoIP Phone Systems.xlsx

	20. Second Amendment to Non-Exclusive Intergovernmental Mineral License - Re-nourishment Project
	Second Amendment to Non-Exclusive Intergovernmental Mineral License.pdf

	21. First Reading, 2019-09, Section 34-261 - Application, STVR
	STVR 04-04-19{4373077.1}.docx

	22. Second Reading, 2019-03, Graffiti
	2019-03 Graffiti.docx

	23. First Reading, 2019-04, Sec 22-33, Disorderly Household
	Disorderly House Redline 04-02-19{4372506.1}.docx

	24. Second Reading, 2019-06, Sec 6-5 and 6-6, Fingerprints
	Alcohol No. 6 04-15-19{4375257.1}.docx

	25. Second Reading, 2019-07, Sec 6-88, Application Required and Sec 6-89, Issuance
	2019-07 Redlines.docx
	Alcohol. No 7 04-15-19{4375264.1}.docx

	26. Second Reading, 2019-08, Sec 2-010, Terms and Definitions, Height of Building
	2019-08 Definitions, Height of Building.docx

	27. Second Reading, 2019-10, Sec 5-090, Variances
	Variances 04-19-19{4376298.1}.docx

	28. Jason Buelterman - clarify definition of home-based business
	29. Jason Buelterman - Finance Committee Notes and Recommendations
	20190306 Finance Committee Meeting Notes.docx
	Water, Sewer, Recycle, Garbage, Yard Debris_ Rates and Discounts.pdf

	30. Jason Buelterman - Golf Cart Safety
	31. Barry Brown, Update, Infrastructure Committee
	32. Wanda Doyle - Update, Public Safety Committee
	33. Shawn Gillen - 3-Way Stops for Approval
	Bottom

